1996

Jane Harper, Richard D. Harper, Frank Cattlelan,
Richard Richins v. Summit County, The Summit
County Commission, Summit County Planning
Commission, Utelite Corporation : Brief of
Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The Court of Appeals has appellate jurisdiction over this appeal pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78-2a-3(2)(j).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES AND STANDARD OF REVIEW

1. Did the trial court commit reversible error by entering findings of fact and a partial summary judgment on a disputed factual record?

Standard of Review:

Issue of law--correctness. Berenda v. Langford, 914 P.2d 45, 50 (Utah 1996); Kilpatrick v. Wiley, Rein & Fielding, 909 P.2d 1283, 1289 (Utah App. 1996).

Preservation of Issue:

Memoranda opposing partial summary judgment (R. 169-71, 182-88); Objections to Proposed Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Proposed Order (R. 245-49); Utelite's Motion to Set Aside Order for Partial Summary Judgment (R. 516-47).

2. Did the trial court commit reversible error by concluding that Summit County's actions leading to the placement of the Utelite loading facility violated the Summit County Development Code?

Standard of Review and Preservation of Issue: same as Issue 1 above.

3. Did the trial court commit reversible error by concluding that Summit County's actions leading to the placement of the Utelite facility deprived the plaintiffs of due process of law?

Standard of Review and Preservation of Issue: same as Issue 1 above.

4. Did the trial court err in determining that Summit County acted in violation of the Utah Open and Public Meetings Law, Utah Code Ann. § 52-4-1, *et seq.*?

Standard of Review and Preservation of Issue: same as Issue 1 above.

5. Did the trial court commit reversible error by stating in its order for partial summary judgment an intention to issue an injunction requiring Summit County to effectuate the removal of the Utelite loading facility?

Standard of Review and Preservation of Issue: same as Issue 1 above.

6. Did the trial court commit reversible error by determining that the Union Pacific Railroad was not a necessary and indispensable party to this action?

Standard of Review:

Interpretation of the Rules of Civil Procedure--correctness.

Carrier v. Pro-Tech Restoration, 909 P.2d 271, 272 (Utah App. 1995); Berenda, *supra*, at 50.

Preservation of Issue:

Summit County's motion to dismiss for non-joinder (R. 143-48); Utelite's memorandum in opposition to plaintiffs' motion for partial summary judgment (R. 169-71); Objections to Proposed Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Proposed Order (R. 247-48).

7. Did the trial court commit reversible error in failing to set aside the prior rulings and orders of Judge Wilkinson which had been demonstrated during the course of later proceedings to be in error?

Standard of Review:

Legal issue--correctness. Savage v. Educators Ins. Co., 908 P.2d 862, 864-65 (Utah 1995).

Preservation of Issue:

Trial Transcript at 19 (R. 2369); Utelite's Motion to Set Aside Order for Partial Summary Judgment and supporting memorandum (R. 513-536); Utelite's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment re: Nuisance Per Se and supporting memorandum (R. 1205-1223).

8. Did the trial court commit error in concluding that violation of the Summit County Development Code constituted a legally sufficient basis for a claim of nuisance per se?

Standard of Review:

Legal issue--correctness. Savage v. Educators Ins. Co., 908 P.2d 862, 864-65 (Utah 1995).

Preservation of Issue:

Trial Transcript at 19-20; Utelite Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment Re: Nuisance Per Se (R. 1205-23).

DETERMINATIVE STATUTORY PROVISIONS

Utah Code Ann. § 52-4-8. Suit to void final action--Limitation--
Exceptions.

Any final action taken in violation of Sections 52-4-3
and 52-4-6 is voidable by a court of competent
jurisdiction. Suit to void final action shall be
commenced within 90 days after the action except that
with respect to any final action concerning the
issuance of bonds, notes, or other evidences of
indebtedness suit shall be commenced within 30 days
after the action.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Introduction

This action was litigated for nearly six years in Third
District Court for Summit County before a number of different
judges. The convoluted procedural history and confusing results
reflect the limitations of the system of rotating judges still
employed in Summit County. See Gillmor v. Wright, 850 P.2d 431,
438-40 (Utah 1993) (Orme, Ct. App. J. concurring). By resolving
fact issues on summary judgment and otherwise misapplying the law
in the first substantive ruling in this action, Judge Homer
Wilkinson introduced error that went uncorrected and continued to
taint later proceedings and to perplex subsequent judges who
handled the case. This Court should correct both that threshold
error and all subsequent errors flowing from it.

Nature of the Case

The plaintiffs seek injunctive and monetary relief with respect to Summit County's approval and Utelite's placement of a rail car loading facility (the "Facility") in the vicinity of the plaintiffs' property in the unincorporated area of Summit County known as Echo, Utah. The case proceeded in two stages: (a) litigation of claims for injunctive relief against Summit County based on alleged procedural defects in the approval of the Facility (resolved by summary judgment in 1991/93) and (b) litigation of claims for equitable and monetary relief based on nuisance per se (resolved by partial summary judgment and by trial to the jury and the court in 1995/96).

Course of Proceedings

The Claims Against Summit County

The plaintiffs commenced this action on July 31, 1990, by filing a Complaint naming the Summit County entities as defendants. The plaintiffs alleged that, in approving the placement of a loading facility in Echo, Utah (the "Facility"), Summit County (a) had failed to afford the plaintiffs due process, (b) had abused its discretion, (c) had violated the Summit County Development Code, (d) had violated the Open Meetings Act, and (e) had otherwise acted contrary to "statutes, ordinances and common law." (R. 1-14) On November 2, 1990, the plaintiffs filed an Amended Complaint, naming Utelite as a defendant, but without advancing any new theories and without stating any specific claims against Utelite. (R. 62)

On April 19, 1991, the plaintiffs moved for Summary Judgment against Summit County. (R. 104) Utelite was not named as a party to that motion.^{1/}

On May 9, 1991, Summit County and Utelite moved to dismiss the action pursuant to Rule 12(b)(7) because the plaintiffs had failed to join as a party defendant the owner of the property on which Utelite had built the Facility--the Union Pacific Railroad (the "Railroad"). (R. 143, 161)

The motion for summary judgment and the motion to dismiss were heard on July 8, 1991, by Judge Homer Wilkinson.^{2/} The trial court granted the motion for summary judgment and denied the motion to dismiss. At the hearing, Judge Wilkinson observed:

I do decline to grant their [the plaintiffs'] Motion for a Cease and Desist Order and for a Writ of Injunction. That I don't know what the parties intend to do concerning this matter--I probably think I do. But I think that if I issue that cease and desist order, that could put them out of business. It could do irreparable damages to them during the appellate procedure. And I think that the parties could be further injured by that, but I think that could be some monetary damages. And therefore, I am going to grant the Motion for Summary Judgment but refuse to grant the Motion for Injunctive Relief to cease and desist.

However, I will indicate that if this matter is not taken further, within 30 or 60 days, that the injunctive relief would be granted. And I am certainly not advising you to

^{1/} The plaintiffs stated: "At the outset it should be noted that Plaintiffs' Motion for Summary Judgment is limited to claims against Summit County and does not seek relief from Utelite." (R. 204)

^{2/} Because of rotating assignments to the Third District Court, Summit County, and the duration of these proceedings, various judges have heard this action: Judge Wilkinson, Judge Young, Judge Iwasaki, Judge Brian and Judge Noel.

appeal the case, but in my own mind I can see that there is probably not much chance that you are not going to.

(R. 235-242 attached as Addendum 1.)^{3/}

On August 22, 1991, the plaintiffs lodged with the Court proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law together with a proposed Order granting the Summary Judgment. (R. 245) Despite an October 15, 1991, hearing on Summit County's objections to the form of these, the proposed Findings and Conclusions and the proposed Order remained unsigned for nearly two years.

(R. 265-71, 275)

On July 26, 1993, the trial court issued an Order to Show Cause why the action should not be dismissed for failure to prosecute. (R. 275) At an August 23, 1993, hearing on the Order to Show Cause, Judge Wilkinson finally entered the Findings and Conclusions and Order Granting Summary Judgment tendered in August 1991. (R. 278, 282 attached hereto as Addenda 2 and 3) The Order found that, in "the emplacement of the Utelite Facility," Summit County had violated the Summit County Development Code, the Open and Public Meetings Law, Utah Code Ann. § 52-4-1, and the due process rights of the plaintiffs. (A. 3:1) The Order denied the motion to dismiss. In pertinent part, the Order provided (A. 3:2):

The effectiveness of this order is stayed for sixty (60) days from the date this order is entered. If no appeal is taken within that time period, then an injunction shall issue and Defendant Summit County shall be required to

^{3/} References to the Addendum shall be "A." followed by the number of the attachment and the specific page number within of that attachment cited.

effectuate the removal of Utelite from their currently occupied site.

Summit County filed a Petition for Interlocutory Appeal with the Utah Supreme Court on September 13, 1993, which the Supreme Court denied by order dated October 28, 1993.

The Claims Against Utelite

At a pretrial conference held on February 14, 1994, Judge David Young granted the plaintiffs leave to file a Second Amended Complaint. (R. 303) On March 11, 1994, the plaintiffs filed their Second Amended Verified Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief stating for the first time damage claims against Utelite. The plaintiffs' claims against Utelite included "common law nuisance," "statutory nuisance," "trespass," "negligence," "infliction of emotional distress," and "attorney's fees and expenses." (R. 304-42) As to Summit County, the plaintiffs sought an award of attorney's fees.

On November 4, 1994, the plaintiffs sought leave to file a Third Amended Complaint to add claims regarding an alleged public right-of-way affected by the placement of the Facility. (R. 779) The trial court entered an order dated March 13, 1995, denying any further amendment because it would necessarily involve adding the Railroad as a party thus delaying the proceedings. (R. 1024-27)

Utelite gave notice on July 14, 1995, of its request that, notwithstanding the plaintiffs' request for a jury trial, the judge determine all equitable issues including any claim for injunctive relief. (R. 1734-35)

By Order dated September 6, 1995, Judge Pat Brian entered partial summary judgment in favor of Utelite dismissing the claims for infliction of emotional distress and for award of attorney's fees, the latter without prejudice to the plaintiffs' renewal of the claim at the conclusion of trial. (R. 1766-68 attached as Addendum 4.)

The remaining claims against Utelite came on for trial before Judge Frank G. Noel on September 12, 1995. Before the commencement of trial, the court ruled that (a) Judge Wilkinson's 1993 Order for Partial Summary Judgment implicitly included a finding that the Utelite loading facility violated the Summit County Development Code and (b) by reason of this violation the Facility was a nuisance per se. (R. 2365-69) Given this finding of liability, the parties stipulated to dismissal without prejudice of all other claims of liability leaving only the issues of actual damages and punitive damages for the jury and the issue of equitable relief for the court. (R. 2368-69)

The jury heard evidence from September 12 through 15, 1995, and returned a verdict awarding general damages for the six and one-half year time period from April 24, 1989, through September 15, 1995, in the following nominal amounts: Jane and Richard Harper--\$5,000 each; Frank Cattelan--\$3,000; and Richard Richins--\$1,500.^{4/} The jury found that the plaintiffs had not suffered any reduction in the market value of their property or, in the case of the plaintiff Cattelan, any business injury. The

^{4/} The plaintiffs had sought general damages in excess of \$250,000.

jury also found that the plaintiffs were not entitled to any exemplary damages. (R. 1988-90)

On February 13, 1996, the trial court entered its Final Judgment on Special Verdict denying the Harpers any further equitable relief and otherwise entering Judgment consistent with the jury's Special Verdict. (R. 2097-2102 attached as Addendum 5.) On April 23, 1996, pursuant to the Utah Open Meetings Act, the trial court entered its Order Re: Award of Plaintiffs' Attorney's Fees awarding to the plaintiffs against Summit County the sum of \$11,150. (R. 2322-23) On May 10, 1996, the trial court entered its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law Re: Equitable Relief finding:

The Facility at present (a) is not injurious to the plaintiffs, (b) does not adversely affect the plaintiff's use and enjoyment of their property, and (c) does not cause any property damage to the plaintiffs.

(R. 2332-36 attached as Addendum 6.) This completed all proceedings in the trial court, and Summit County and Utelite jointly noticed their appeal on May 31, 1996.^{5/}

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Utelite and the Railroad

Utelite mines and processes lightweight aggregate at its plant near Peoa, Utah. (R. 2831) Until 1989, Utelite loaded aggregate for out-of-state shipment via the Railroad's Park City

^{5/} To avoid any contention that they had failed to preserve their right to appeal, Summit County and Utelite had previously noticed an appeal in response to the February 13, 1996, Final Judgment on Special Verdict on March 4, 1996. Based on a review of the docketing statements submitted in support of those appeals and cross-appeals in Case No. 960121, the Utah Supreme Court, by Order entered May 31, 1996, dismissed the appeal without prejudice for lack of finality.

branch line at a portable loading facility next to the Spring Chicken Inn in Wanship, Utah. (R. 2836)

The Railroad owns a right-of-way through the unincorporated town of Echo, Utah. This right-of-way includes two main transcontinental line tracks along with a passing track and an "industry track." (R. 2816-18) The Railroad has operated in Echo since 1869. (R. 1673) In the past, the Railroad has operated a loading facility and a railroad yard at the Echo right-of-way. (R. 2616-17)

In 1988, the Railroad obtained regulatory authority to abandon its Park City branch line. (R. 2802) To secure Utelite's agreement to the abandonment of the Park City line, the Railroad offered (a) to lease property at the Echo right-of-way to Utelite on favorable terms and (b) to defray certain expenses associated with Utelite's establishment of a loading facility at the Echo right-of-way. (R. 2839) Utelite accepted the Railroad's offer and commenced preparations to construct a new loading facility on the industry track at the Echo right-of-way. (R. 2839-40)

Utelite and Summit County

As part of those preparations, Utelite inquired of Summit County regarding any regulatory approval needed to construct the Facility. (R. 559) Summit County suggested that Utelite attend a December 13, 1988, meeting of the Summit County Planning Commission to verify what permits or other approvals might be needed to construct the Facility. (*Id.*)

Utelite officer Carsten Mortensen ("Mortensen") attended the December 13, 1988, meeting of the Summit County Planning Commission to inquire regarding any needed governmental approval. Summit County Planning Commission officials at the meeting indicated to Mortensen that the placement of the Facility on the Railroad's industry track was a "permitted use" consistent with the historic use of the property as a railroad siding and loading site. Mortensen understood from this that placement of the Facility did not require any special action by the Planning Commission. (*Id.*) Summit County confirmed this by a letter dated January 13, 1989. (R. 122 attached as Addendum 7.)

Utelite completed the Facility and commenced operations there on April 24, 1989.

Utelite and the Plaintiffs

The plaintiffs own property near the Facility. The Railroad's tracks through Echo lie between the Facility and the property of all plaintiffs but Richins (whose property lies west of I-84). Trains pass through Echo on these tracks between 15 and 20 times per day. (A. 6:2)

Semi-trucks transport aggregate to the Facility for loading. Weekly at the Facility, Utelite loads on average six and one-half railroad cars. To load a single railroad car requires four truckloads and a total of 40 minutes loading time. The Facility currently operates, with occasional exceptions, on weekdays during daylight hours. (A. 6:2)

The plaintiffs have complained that the Facility generates intolerable levels of dust and noise. To deal with dust from the loading operations, Utelite has taken the following steps:

- (a) Construction of a metal enclosure at the Facility.
- (b) Installation of a bag house and duct work at the Facility.
- (c) Paving of the access road to the Facility.
- (d) Installation of curtains and an electric door at the Facility.
- (e) Watering down aggregate at the Utelite plant.
- (f) Installation of a hood and metal coverings over the conveyor belt and drop areas at the Facility.
- (g) Response to resident complaints called in to the Utelite plant including termination of loading on windy days. (A. 6:3)

To deal with noise problems from the operation of the Facility, Utelite has taken the following steps:

- (a) Installation of a muffler on the bag house.
- (b) Instruction to truckers not to bang railroad cars in connection with loading. (A. 6:3)

To deal with other annoyances, Utelite has:

- (a) Removed outdoor lighting at the Facility.
- (b) Terminated night loading.
- (c) Instructed truck drivers to yield to other vehicles seeking access to the frontage road on the far side of Interstate 84 through the road at the Facility. (A. 6:3, 4)

As a result of the actions taken by Utelite, the Facility at present (a) is not injurious to the plaintiffs, (b) does not adversely affect the plaintiffs' use and enjoyment of their

property, and (c) does not cause any property damage to the plaintiffs. (A. 6:4)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The fundamental error which tainted all further proceedings in this action occurred when Judge Homer Wilkinson resolved disputed questions of material fact on a motion for partial summary judgment. The transcript of the Judge's Bench Ruling amply demonstrates that the trial court improperly considered the weight, persuasiveness and credibility of the evidence on at least three (3) critical disputed factual issues. The court then entered findings of fact that ignored those critical factual disputes and afforded no support for the conclusions of law.

Judge Wilkinson compounded this fundamental deficiency when he erroneously determined:

- (a) Summit County's interpretation of its Development Code in response to Utelite's inquiry regarding the proposed construction of the Facility violated the Development Code and was therefore null and void.
- (b) This interpretation deprived plaintiffs of due process of law.
- (c) The plaintiffs could wait over 18 months to challenge Summit County's course of dealings with Utelite under the Utah Open Meetings Law.
- (d) The modest procedural defect identified by the trial court required the removal of the Utelite facility.
- (e) The Union Pacific Railroad was not a necessary and indispensable party to a judicial determination regarding the historical, present and future use of its property and facilities in Echo, Utah.

The various other judges who heard various aspects of later proceedings in this case declined to correct Judge Wilkinson by revisiting his earlier erroneous ruling.

The plaintiffs' damage claims against Utelite proceeded to a jury trial based, in part, on Judge Frank Noel's reliance on the implication in Judge Wilkinson's earlier ruling that there was a zoning violation. From this Judge Noel erroneously concluded that the continued operation of the Facility was a nuisance per se. These fundamental errors in the decisions of the trial court should be reversed.

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED ERROR IN GRANTING PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT AGAINST SUMMIT COUNTY ON A DISPUTED FACTUAL RECORD.

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