1996

Jane Harper, Richard D. Harper, Frank Cattelan,
Richard Richins, and The Dicker Hill Trust v.
Summit County : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Trial Court properly entered summary judgment requiring removal of the facility from Echo, Utah. There were no genuine issues of material fact and the plaintiffs were entitled to removal because the County, without notice, allowed the facility to locate in a rural residential zone without a building permit or certificate of zoning compliance. This violated the Development Code, Utah zoning law, Utah's laws on open and public meetings and due process guarantees.

The County has already attempted to appeal this Order to the Supreme Court on an interlocutory appeal and lost. The Appellants have not given any more reason in their brief to reverse the Trial Court than they gave the Supreme Court on the fundamental issue of removal. There were no disputes of fact on this issue, all indispensable parties were before the Trial Court, and the relevant zoning laws, including the County's Development Code, completely supported the Trial Court's decision.

The Trial Court, however, did commit error during the damage phase of this case by 1) refusing to allow plaintiffs to conduct discovery, 2) by denying leave to amend plaintiffs' claims to assert ones that provided additional basis for damages, 3) by limiting evidence the plaintiffs could introduce, and 4) by

allowing the jury to view the facility during atypical operating conditions. All of these errors unfairly prejudiced the plaintiffs, reduced the amount of the jury's award, and led to the Trial Court's erroneous findings and conclusions on further equitable relief.

ARGUMENT

I. THE DISTRICT COURT PROPERLY ORDERED THAT THE UTELITE FACILITY BE REMOVED WHERE THERE WERE NO ISSUES OF DISPUTED FACT

The Trial Court's Order to remove the facility is based upon undisputed facts and well established Utah law. The facts demonstrate the County violated Utah law and its own Development Code when it allowed the facility to be a "permitted" use in a rural residential zone and when it belatedly issued a building permit without obtaining a certificate of zoning compliance. Under Utah law and the Development Code, the Trial Court had the full authority to issue its Order to the County to remove the facility.

A. Allowing the loading facility to operate in a rural residential zone violated Utah and County Law.

The undisputed facts show that Summit County, acting without notice, allowed Utelite to locate its facility in an area zoned rural residential as a "permitted" use. A permitted use is a use expressly authorized within a particular zone. Development Code 12.20. The Development Code lists with great particularity those uses that are "permitted" in a residential rural zone and a loading facility like Utelite's is not included in the list. Development Code, § 12.20.

The Development Code constitutes the master planning document for Summit County. Development Code Chapter 1.8. As such, it is binding upon the County. Utah Code Ann. § 17-27-7 (1987). Once such a master plan has been duly enacted by the governing authorities, further actions by the governing authority must be taken in accordance with that plan to promote the health, safety and welfare of the community. It becomes the guiding instrument for future development and must be followed. See, Gibbons & Reed Company v. North Salt Lake City, 431 P.2d 559 (Utah 1967); Naylor v. Salt Lake City Corporation, 398 P.2d 27 (Utah 1965).

Zoning authorities like the County's Planning Commission are strictly bound by the terms and standards of a zoning ordinance. They are not at liberty to grant or deny permits in derogation of those legislative standards. Thurston v. Cache County, 626 P.2d 440, 444-45 (Utah 1981).

If there is a zoning violation, the Courts are fully authorized to order the zoning law be met. At the time Utelite built its facility, Utah law and the Summit County Development Code specifically authorized injunctive relief and abatement proceedings. Under Utah Law:

Violation of Chapter 27, Title 17, or of any county zoning, subdivision, or official map ordinance is punishable as a class C misdemeanor. The board of county commissioners, the county attorney, or any owner of real estate within the county in which a violation occurs, may, in addition to other remedies provided by law, institute injunction, mandamus, abatement, or any other appropriate action or proceeding to prevent, enjoin, abate, or remove any erection, construction, alteration, maintenance, or use in violation of this

Code.

Utah Code Ann. § 17-27-23 (1987).

Under Summit County's Development Code:

Any person, firm, or corporation, whether as principle, agent, employee, or otherwise, violating or causing the violation of any of the provisions of this Code shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and punishable as provided by law. The County Attorney, or any owner of real estate adversely affected by a violation of this Code, may institute injunction, abatement, or any other appropriate legal action to prevent, enjoin, abate, or remove any erection, construction, alteration, maintenance, or use in violation of this Code.

Development Code at 1.16.

So clear is the law that there need not be a showing of harm for an injunction to issue. In Utah County v. Baxter, 635 P.2d 61 (Utah 1981), the Supreme Court stated:

Under the statute, a specific showing of irreparable injury is therefore not required and the pleading thereof in the complaint is mere surplusage. Nevertheless, it fairly may be said that under the foregoing analysis, a showing that the zoning ordinance has been violated is tantamount to a showing of irreparable injury (to the public).

Baxter at 65. In this case the Trial Court properly found that the acts and omissions of the defendants were contrary to the Development Code. Applying Utah Code Section 17-27-23, the Summit County Development section 1.16, and Utah case law, the Court correctly ordered that the Utelite facility be removed.

The defendants do not ever mention that the area was zoned rural residential in their Brief. They attempt to transform a simple case into a complicated one by arguing that there is a fact issue whether Summit County's course of dealings were a legislative exercise of zoning power or simply administrative

action. Whether the County's conduct was administrative or legislative does not matter--the placement of the facility in a rural residential zone violated the law, and the Trial Court had the full authority to order the County to abide by its own laws.

Likewise, the defendants mistakenly attempt to avoid removal by labeling Union Pacific's railtracks as a "nonconforming use" and the facility as an "accessory" to this nonconforming use. In their argument, the defendants conspicuously disregarded that a "permitted use" is explicit and has concrete meaning in zoning law. A "permitted use" is specifically authorized--which this one was not.⁸

Moreover, even if the facts are disregarded, and the Planning Commission's decision that the use was "permitted" is overlooked, the defendants' argument is wrong. Summit County's Development Code does not allow the loading facility as an accessory to a nonconforming use.⁹

⁸ In their brief the County and Utelite refer to a letter written by the County Attorney in February of 1990, which was long after the facility had been built, describes the facility as an "accessory" to a nonconforming use. This letter does not reflect what happened before the planning commission and simply is the argument of the County and Utelite. It is not a fact.

⁹ The Appellants elusively cite Anderson's American Law of Zoning definition of "non-conforming use" in their Brief instead of the County's Development Code. Brief of Appellants at 19 n. 7 (quoting Young, Anderson's American Law of Zoning, 4 ed. (1995) § 6.01 at 481-82). They must do so because Anderson's definition does not address (1) the enlargement of the nonconforming use that occurred in this case; and (2) the lapse of more than one year since this area had been used for loading. Under the Development Code, these two facts alone establish that the loading facility is prohibited. Development Code at 3.7.

The Code defines a "nonconforming use" as:

3.7 Nonconforming use of Land

The nonconforming use of land, existing at the time this code became effective, may be continued, provided that no such nonconforming use of land shall in any way be expanded or extended either on the same or adjoining property, and provided that if such nonconforming use of land, or any portion thereof, is abandoned or changed for a period of one (1) year or more, any future use of such land shall be in conformity with the provisions of this Code.(emphasis added).

Development Code at 3.7. Under this provision the nonconforming use of land shall in no way be expanded or extended on the same or adjoining property and if the use is abandoned for more than one year the future use of such land shall be in conformity with the provisions of the code.

In State v. Holt's Estate, 381 P.2d 724 (Utah 1963), the Court interpreted a similar code provision,¹⁰ and held that the discontinuance of the nonconforming commercial use of property that burned down for more than one year proved an effective abandonment, and the property was thereafter subject to the new residential zoning requirement. Holt's Estate at 725 (citing Morrison v. Horne, 363 P.2d 1113 (Utah 1961)).

In this case the area in which the Utelite facility was built had never been the site of a commercial loading facility.

¹⁰ Bountiful City, Sec. 24-18, subsec. 4 provided:

One Year Vacancy- A building, structure or portion thereof, non-conforming as to use, which is, or hereafter becomes vacant, and remains unoccupied for a continuous period of one (1) year, shall not thereafter be occupied except by a use which conforms to the use regulations of the zone in which it is located.

No loading of railcars had taken place anywhere in Echo for decades when the last steam engine to roll through town was loaded with coal for fuel. (R. 2552; 2615-16). There was no loading facility in 1987 when plaintiffs Jane Harper obtained their building permit for their home in the RR-2 neighborhood.

Defendants' error is compounded by claiming that the facility is an "accessory" to a "preexisting use." Brief of Defendants' at 19-20. An "accessory use" is defined as:

A subordinate use customarily incidental to and located upon the same lot occupied by the main use and devoted exclusively to the main use of the premises.

Development Code at 1.6(63). Loading rock aggregate cannot be considered an "accessory" to the non-conforming use of a railroad track. Additionally, the use is devoted to loading rock aggregate for Utelite's commercial purposes. This is not an "accessory use" to a railroad right-of-way.¹¹

The defendants' argument, taken to its logical conclusion, would mean that any type of loading facility on a railroad would be considered an "accessory use." For example, a garbage loading facility could be located anywhere along a railroad track that runs through a rural residential zone. This is clearly not the law.

Finally, under the Development Code, "[a] non-conforming use shall be deemed abandoned if said use has not applied to the premises for a consecutive period of 12 months." Development

¹¹ The preexisting use to occasionally and temporarily hold railcars for repair may have been an "accessory use." A loading facility for a private company was not.

Code at 3.9. If a nonconforming use is deemed abandoned when not exercised on the premises for 12 months, an "accessory" to the nonconforming use would surely be abandoned.

B. Appellants Violated the Development Code By Belatedly Issuing a Building Permit Without a Certificate Of Zoning Compliance.

The undisputed facts also demonstrate the County violated its own Code because the facility was built without a certificate of zoning compliance and long before the issuance of a building permit.

The Summit County Development Code expressly provides that:

Construction or removal of any building or structure¹² or any part thereof as provided or as restricted in this Code shall not be commenced, or proceeded with, except after the issuance of a written permit for the same by the county building inspector Prerequisite to the issuance of a building permit shall be the obtaining of a certificate of zoning compliance from the zoning administrator or his authorized representative.

Development Code Chapter 1.9. The facts of this case leave no doubt that this provision was clearly disregarded by the Defendants in regards to the construction of the Utelite facility.

Because Summit County's acts were in derogation of the Development Code, they are null and void. The Development Code at Chapter 1.15 provides that:

All departments, officials, and public employees of Summit County vested with duty and authority to issue

¹² Chapter 1.6(61) of the Development Code defines structure as "[a]nything constructed or erected which requires location on the ground or attached to something having location on the ground." Utelite's loadout facility is a structure under this definition.

permits, licenses, or certificates of zoning compliance shall conform to the provisions of this Code and shall not issue a permit, license, or certificate of zoning compliance for use, building or other purposes where the same would be in conflict with this Code, and any such permit, license, or certificate issued in conflict with the provisions of this Code, shall be null and void.

Development Code at 1.15. The actions of Summit County in issuing the building permit were "null and void." The Trial Court had full authority to order Summit County to effectuate removal of the facility, and its Order must be upheld.

II. THE TRIAL COURT'S ORDER TO REMOVE THE FACILITY IS FULLY SUPPORTED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CODE AND UTAH LAW

In their brief the defendants challenge the remedy awarded by the Trial Court by maintaining that Judge Wilkinson's "confusion" extends to his "articulation of the relief granted." Brief of defendants at 30. Judge Wilkinson was not "confused." He properly understood this case "boiled down" to a violation of the Development Code and zoning laws. (Attached as "A-1" to Defendants' Brief at 3, line 24). In his Order, Judge Wilkinson indicated that Summit County "shall be required to effectuate the removal of Utelite from their currently occupied site." To allow Utelite an appeal, Judge Wilkinson stayed the effect of the Order for sixty (60) days. Unless the appeal was successful, and it was not, the facility had to move.

There is nothing confusing about this relief, and so far the Defendants have been the ones to benefit from the stay. Since the appeal, it has been fully understood. For example, Judge

Noel advised the jury in this case that there was an Order requiring Summit County to remove the facility. (R. at 1985).

The undisputed facts admitted by the defendants in their Answers and in discovery clearly establish a violation of the Development Code. The Trial Court fully intended that the facility be removed but permitted an appeal. Summit County had the opportunity to appeal, and lost.

At that point in time the facility should have been removed and Judge Young erred in failing to implement the removal Order. The Order was the law of the case. See Richardson v. Grand Central Corp., 572 P.2d 395 (Utah 1977). Since the Utah Supreme Court would not reverse the Order upon the fervent appeal of the County, this Court should not do so at this time.

In their Brief the defendants challenge the relief because it "overlooked the difficult position of Summit County." Brief of defendants at 31. Specifically, the defendants indicate that Utelite could have a claim of "equitable estoppel" against Summit County because the County told Utelite that the facility would constitute a "permitted use." Brief of defendants' at 31.

In making this argument the defendants implicitly acknowledge that the Planning Commission erred by indicating the "use" was "permitted". The defendants also implicitly acknowledge the real reason for these proceedings: the County unlawfully allowed Utelite to move to Echo in violation of its own law. There is the potential for a claim against the County from Utelite. However, that issue is between Utelite and the

County. It should not be the plaintiffs' problem.

So far Utelite has not had to formally make this claim. Instead, it has purposely and deliberately accepted the risks of staying in Echo. It has done so knowing the zoning in the area was rural residential, and knowing there are alternate locations to which it could move. (R. 2885-2890). Utelite has chosen to do this after the Court ordered removal.

Instead of complying with the law, Utelite and the County have undertaken a joint strategy, beneficial to both, to place blame on others, including the plaintiffs (for their alleged delay in bringing the action), and the Railroad (for requesting Utelite to abandon its Wanship site).

This blame is misplaced. In Utah, zoning violations are tolerated only in "exceptional" cases. Neither the County nor Utelite can persuasively argue that there are exceptional circumstances here. Our Supreme Court has made it clear that:

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